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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known
as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, its loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Empbhasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 27 to the financial statements regarding the
Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") which has been approved by NCLT vide its order dated 8 October
2018. The Company has given effect to the Scheme from the appointed date specified in the Scheme i.e., 1
April 2017. The accounting treatment is different from that prescribed under Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management and Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

\ ] g a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
J knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
g ry purp
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

b)

c)

d)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion and in the context of overriding effect of the accounting treatment for the
amalgamation scheme approved by the NCLT vis-a-vis the treatment that would have been
applicable otherwise as described in Note 27 to the financial statements, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; and

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private company,
provisions of section 197 of the Act relating to managerial remuneration are not applicable to the

Company.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: lO]248W100022

FIwLb o
Glenn D’souza
Partner

Jaipur Membership No: 112554
30 November 2021 ICAI UDIN: 21112554AAAADW 1245
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Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

(Referred to in our report of even date)

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all fixed assets are verified over a period of two years, In accordance with the policy, the
Company has physically verified certain fixed assets during the year. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no immovable properties are held by the
Company. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) The Company is a service company, primarily acting as intermediary between merchants and banks
for electronic payment services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loans, made any investments or provided any guarantees or security covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the said Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public as per the provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i
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Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of duty of customs and duty of excise during

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services
tax, cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(Continued)
(vi)  (a)
the year.
(b)

According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax,
goods and services tax, services tax which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes except for the following dues of income-tax which have not been
deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Amount Period to which Forum where dispute
Dues under Dispute the amount is pending
(Rs. in Lakhs) relates
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 16 AY.2003-04 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 20 ALY.2004-05 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11 AY. 2005-06 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act., 1961 Income Tax 5 AY. 2006-07 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 145  AY.2007-08 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 9 ALY, 2008-09 Assessing Officer

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings
from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

n
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Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.
(Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Jaipur

The Company is a private limited company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company. Thus, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188
of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The Company does not fall under
the definition of a listed company or other class of companies which is required to constitute an
audit committee under Section 177 (4) (iv) of the Act and hence the said Section is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential share allotment of shares or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101_248Wl__)5£-l'00022

< A
NS
-Glenn D’souza
Partner
Membership No: 112554

30 November 2021 ICAI UDIN: 21112554AAAADW1245
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Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Ingenico ePayments
India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ingenico ePayments
India Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

{
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Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Ingenico ePayments
India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021. (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248 W/W400022

Glenn D‘;ouza
' Partner
Jaipur Membership No:112554
30 November 2021 ICAI UDIN: 21112554AAAADW 1245



Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note As at As at
31 Miarch 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
(A) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment {3 733 935
(b) Right of use assets ) 1,121 813
(c) Goodwill (5 8,450 16,900
(d) Other intangible assets (3) 34 123
(e) Intangible assets under development (3a) 25 -
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments {6) 1 1
(ii) Loans 8 375 260
(iii) Other financial assets [/} 2,565 2,637
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) (10) 1,461 4779
(h) Income tax assets (net) 8,240 7,166
(i) Other assets [p)] 28 32
Total non-current assets 23,033 33,646
{B) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables {7) 4,064 7,436
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents (12) 6,765 5,369
{1ii) Bank balances other than (ii) above (13) 18,535 14,154
(iv) Loans 8) 2 113
{v) Other financial assets el 2,137 1,641
{b) Other assets {11 208 182
Total current assets 31,711 28,895
Total assets 54,744 62,541
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A) Equity
(a) Share capital (14) 2,264 2,264
{b) Other equity (13} 35,326 42,958
Total equity 37,590 45222
{B) Liabilities
(I) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities (28) 950 573
(ii) Other financial liabilities (17} 83 85
{b) Provisions (18} 396 289
Total non-current liabilities 1,429 947
(II) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities (28) 299 325
(ii) Trade payables (i)
1. Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 81 -
2. Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11,524 12,323
(iii) Other financial liabilities (17} 1,639 1,248
(b) Other liabilities (19) 1,327 1,836
(c) Provisions 18) 855 640
Total current liabilities 15,725 16,372
Total Equity and Liabilities 54,744 62,541
Summary of significant accounting policies (2
The accompanying notes from 1 1o 42 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountagts Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
Finn;;s Registratien No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U74200MH2005PTC192623
o ‘_ iy
y - \ \] \.LR.’ /
Glenn DSouza™ Ramal;-ishnan Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan
Partner Director Director and CEQ
Membership No: 112554 DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
30 November 2021 Q 30 November 2021
Esha Mehta
Company Secretary
Mumbai Membership No: A30027

30 November 2021 30 November 2021




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
(1) Income

(a) Revenue from operations 20)
(b) Other income (net) (21)

Total Income

(2) Expenses

(a) Operating expenses (22)
(b) Employee benefits expense (23)
(c) Finance costs {24}
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense (25)
(e) Other expenses {26)
Total Expenses

(3) Profit/(Loss) before tax (1-2)

(4) Tax expense

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax charge 37)
Total tax expense

(5) Loss for the year

(6) Other comprehensive income/(loss)

(1) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (23)
(b) Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss (37)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

(7) Total comprehensive loss for the year

Earning per share
Basic and diluted earning per share (Rs. per share)

Summary of significant accounting policies (2)
The accompanying notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regigifation No: 101248W/W-100022

v ()
YDA
Glenn D'souza
Partner

Membership No: 112554

Mumbai
30 November 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2021

43,324 42,085
1,493 1,402
44,817 43,487
31,343 30,096
5,024 5,233
97 84
9,328 9,227
3,366 3,588
49,158 48228
(4,341) (4,741)
3311 86
3,311 86
(7,652) (4,827)
27 (24)

(0] 6

20 (18)
(7,632) (4,845)
-33.80 -21.32

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
CIN: U74200MH2005PTC192623

|:"\\ !

\\ 7 &}) L
Ramakr}h'\!gn n Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan
Director Director and CEO
DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
30 November 2021

30 November 2021

Esha Mehta

'ompany Secretary

Membership No: A30027
30 November 2021




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars Amount|
Balance as at 1 April 2019 _ 2264
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020

(Changes in equity share capital during the year

2,264
—_——
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,264

(B) Other equity

Particulars Reserve and Surplus ‘Total attributable Total equity
Securities premium Retained o ovwners of the
earnings Company
Balance as at 1 April 2019 57471 (9,668) 47,803 47,803
Loss for the year - (4,827) (4.827) (4,827)
Other comprehensive loss - 24) (24) (24)
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss - [ 6 L]
Total Comprehensive Loss L (4,845) (4,845) (4,845)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 57471 (14,513) 42,958 42,958
Balance as at 1 April 2020 57471 (14,513) 42,958 42,958
Loss for the year - (7.652) (7:652) (7.652)
Other comprehensive loss - 27 27 27
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss - [l (7 7
Total Comprehensive Loss - (7,632) (7,632) (7.632)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 57,471 (22,145) 35,327 35,327

Nature and purpose of reserves
(a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(b) Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of
retained earnings. At the end of the year, the loss after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained earnings.

As per our report of even date aftached.

For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited

Firm's Regi on No: 101248W/W-100022 \ 7 CIN: U74200MH2005PTC192623
Glen ol Ramakrishpan Ramamurthy i

Partner = Director Director and CEQ

Membership No: 112554 DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135

30 November 2021 /%30 Noyember 2021

Esha Mehta

Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No: A30027

30 November 2021 30 November 2021




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{A) Cashflow from operating activities
Loss before tax (4,341) (4,741)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,328 9,227
Allowance for expected credit loss 9 177
Provision for doubtful deposits 33 -
Bad debts written-off 16 82
Interest expense on finance lease % 84
Balances written-back (25) (114)
Other miscellaneous income (3) -
(Profit)/Loss on sale/discard/write off of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (5 7
Interest on income-tax refund {55) -
Interest income on bank deposits (1,243) (1,178)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain) (51) 5
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 3,759 3,553
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 3,350 (2,771)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (26) 472
(Increase)/Decrease in loans (37 (51)
Decrease in non-current assets 5 10
I /(D }in t fi ial assets - (1)
(Increase) in current financial assets (562) {393)
(Decrease) in trade payables (642) 6,777
Increase in current provisions 107 120
Increase in non-current provisions 241 62
Increase/(Decrease) in non-current financial liabilities 391 {200)
(D i in current ial liabilities {2) 542
(D W in current liabiliti (509) 83
Cash generated from operations 6,075 8,203
Income taxes paid (net of interest on refund of tax) (1,019) (2,918)
Net cashflow from operating activities 5,056 5,285
(B) Cashflow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (216) (976)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13 6
Interest received on bank deposits L171 1,281
Investments in bank deposits (4,170) (7.079)
Net cashflow from investing activiti (3,202) (6,768)
{C) Cashflow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities {362) @m
Interest paid on lease liabilities (96) {84)
Net cashflow from financing activities (458) (361)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,396 {1,844)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,369 7,213
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,765 5,369




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flow (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash in hand 1 1
Balance with banks:

In current accounts 4,116 2,492
In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less 2,648 1,947
Deposits (lien against performance guarantees) with original maturity of less than 3 months - 929
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,765 5,369

As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
Fim}'s Regi b 0: 101248W/W-100022 k/ CIN: UT4200MH2005PTC192623 %
nan thy R h N imh
Partner Director and CEQ
Membership No: 112554 DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
30 November 2021
Esha Mehta
Company Secretary
Mumbai Membership No: A30027
30 November 2021 30 November 2021

Notes:
1. This statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
2. Cash and cash equivalent represent Cash and bank balance (refer Note 12)




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Selutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Company overview

Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited) (*the Company’) was incorporated on 3 February 2005
under the Companies Act, 1956, The main busi of the Company is to act as an intermediary between merchants and banks for electronic payment
services. It is also engaged in providing recurring payment services to its clients in the form of ECS, NACH, Direct Debit, e-mandate services and such
ancillary activities to payment services. The Company also acts as an intermediary to facilitate delivery, review and payment of bills payable to any utility
provider, service provider etc., in respect of services or utilities availed and to receive/send instructions/communications in respect of the same. The
Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL. During the year ended 31 March 2018, TechProcess Payment
Services Private Limited was amalgamated with the Company.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'") as per Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

i) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases’ with the date of initial application being 1 April 2019, Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and
related interpretation and guidance. The standard sets out principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor.

Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, where it has
recognised the lease liability on initial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the company’s
(lessee’s) incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application & it has recognised the a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial application. Refer note 2.7, 4 & 28 for further details.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors as on 30 November 2021.

(i) Basis of measurement
The financial statements has been prepared on a historical cost basis except for following items:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.
- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

(iii)  Use of judgement and estimat,
While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the Company makes certain estimates and assumptions that require subjective and
complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position date and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period.
Financial reporting results rely on our estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as
forecasted and the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
Company continually evaluate these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 is included in the following notes:

Note 2.6 — Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Note 2.8 and 2.12 - Impairment test, key assumptions for underlying recoverable amounts,
Note 2.17 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations.
MNote 2.16 and 2.18 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow

Note 2.11 — Impairment of trade receivables.
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2.4

@

(i)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in its Balance Sheet based on current versus non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of service
and the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities,

Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The Company operates in one
reportable business segment ie. 'Payment processing services'. Further, since all of its business takes place in India, the Company does not have an
reportable geographical segment.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. The Company determines its

own functional currency (the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates) and items included in the financial
statements of the Company are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the Company's functional currency at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at reporting date exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Central B Wing and
North C Wing
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2.6

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue

Income from operations consist of revenue from providing payment processing services.

Revenue is recognized when a contract exists with the customer, measured based on the amount entitled to be received for the performance obligation and
recognized when it satisfies its performance obligation (transfer of control) which may be either overtime or at a point in time.

Revenue from payment processing services include online and offline services, revenue for which is recognised as the services are rendered based on
contractual terms.

Integration fees, which do not result in the transfer of a service are normally recognised when the future services are provided.

Maintenance services revenue are recognised when it is not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection and is accounted ratably over the period.
Risk management services revenue and charge-back processing fees are recognized as the services are rendered.

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contracts are unbundled into separately identifiable performance obligations and the consideration is allocated to those identifiable performance obligations
on the basis of their relative standalone selling price of each distinct goods or service promised in the contract. Revenue is recognised for respective
performance obligation either at the point in time or overtime, as applicable.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only
act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

3

Unearned and deferred revenue (“c bility™) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for
contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance completed to date, typically to
those contracts where invoicing is based on transaction processed.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. The Company assesses the services promised
in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Income tax
Current tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable or tax receivable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Management
peniodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements, However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised.

Deferred tax assets —unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
—
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrang t qualifies to be a lease based on the requirements of the relevant standard. Computation on of the lease liabilities
and right-to-use assets requires 1 it to esti the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
termi a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the Option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
expenses from operating lease in the books of lessee are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of inflation. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they incurred.

Finance Lease

Leases under which the Company being lessee assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The lower of
fair value of asset and present minimum lease rentals is capitalised as fixed assets with corresponding amount shown as lease liability. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged to the
statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

Policy applicable with effect from 1 April 2019
The Company as a lessee
"The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings.

A contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of

the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.”

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU)and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right -of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right -of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any ement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight -line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of
the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. For leases with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in Company’s assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

Lease liability is further blﬁm.‘.ated into current and non-current portion; and the right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flow.

Western Express
Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063
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2.11

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019 wherein it has used the modified retrospective approach,
where it has recognised the lease liability on initial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
company's (lessee’s) incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application & it has recognised the a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,
at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of
transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by lease basis.

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at
the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application
as an alternative to performing an impairment review and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued
on lease liability.

The Company does not have any lease contracts wherein it acts as a lessor.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

A. Financial assets

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The classification depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

{I) Classification
The financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
b) Those to be measured at amortised cost.
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Significant accountint policies (Continued)

4}

Financial instr ts (Ci
A. Financial assets (Continued)
(I) Classification (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, debt securities and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value with net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss. Interests, dividends and gain/loss on foreign exchange on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included separately in other income.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are d at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(II) Measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset, There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.

Amortised cost
The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
b) The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost include trade and other receivables and other financial assets. After initial measurement at fair value, the financial assets
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in other expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
The Company classifies its financial assets at other comprehensive income only if both of the following criteria are met:

a) financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) selling financial assets.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

(III) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

(IV) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt
instruments. The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.




212

213

Significant of accounting policies (Continued)
Fi ial instr ts (Continued)

A, Financial assets (Continued)

(IV) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is
a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (ie. all
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company considers the following:

(i) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument.

(ii) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed.

B. Financial liabilities

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

(I) Classification

The financial liabilities are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
b) Those to be measured at amortised cost.

(IT) Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as sub ly d at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

q

Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, employee benefits payable and other payables.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the EIR
method. Any difference between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the amount due on settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the
term of the borrowing.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest charge over the relevant effective
interest rate period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. This category generally applies to borrowings.

(III) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{IV) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Interest and dividend income

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets, interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate
(EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow

discounted at the original EIR of the instr t, and conti unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired financial asset is
recognised using the original EIR.




2.14

2.15

)

(i)

Signification accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equig t are d at cost / d d cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated attributable costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment not available for intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Assets are depreciated on straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of asset, as determined by the management or as per rates prescribed under
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Class of asset Life of the asset
Office equipment 5 years
‘Computers and accessories 3 years
Furniture and fixtures Over the primary lease period of the premises
Vehicle 4 years

The assets” residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.
Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to
obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Class of asset Life of the asset

(Computer software 5 years

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date.
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill arising on amalgamation in accordance with court scheme

Goodwill arising on amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited has been recognised in accordance with court scheme, Said goodwill
has been amortised in accordance with the court sch for which Company has esti d useful life of 5 years.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seftle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset, if it is virtually certain
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Share based compensation

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share based payments using the fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102- Share based
payment. Selected employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of equity settled instruments, for rendering services over a defined vesting
period and for ultimate holding company’s performance based stock options over the defined period. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to
income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award with a corresponding increase to share
options outstanding account.

(iii) Other long-term empl benefit obligat

The liabilities for eamned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iv) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

q

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss

as past service cost.

Defined contribution plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available,

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or
present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is
considered remote.

Earnings per share

(1) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company;
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Earnings per share (Continued)
fii} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take info account;
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I1I, unless
otherwise stated.

Recent accounting pronouncement
On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MICA") through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, The

amendments revise Division I, IT and III of Schedule III and are applicable from 1 April 2021. Key amendments relating to Division 1T which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are;

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

* Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and
restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

« Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
= Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

» [f a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of
details of where it has been used.

» Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with
number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key
managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

= Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under
the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive, and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Financial Statements

“The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on its revenue and the carrying amounts of its non current and current
assets including billed and unbilled receivables and Intangibles. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has used internal and external information. Having reviewed the underlying data and based on current
estimates, the Company does not expect any material impact on the carrying amount of these assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial
statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.”

»,

%




Ingenice ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the fi ial {Continued)
as atf 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(3)  Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Computers and Vehicles Furniture and  Office equi L hold Total
accessories fixtures improvements
Gross carrying amount
Asat | April 2019 574 17 121 7 3 1o
Additions 520 - 390 67 - 977
Disposals 15 - 18 24 3 70
As at 31 March 2020 1,079 17 483 120 - 1,699 |
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 Apnl 2019 415 15 &0 60 3 553
Depreciation 165 2 79 22 - 268
Disposals 14 - 15 5 3 57
As at 31 March 2020 566 17 124 57 - 764
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 513 - 359 63 - 935 |
Gross carrying amount
As at | April 2020 1,079 17 483 120 - 1,699
Additions 143 - 35 11 - 189
Disposals 6 17 139 16 - 188
As at 31 March 2021 1216 - 379 105 - 1,704
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 566 17 124 57 - 764
Depreciation 242 - 121 21 - 384
Disposals & 17 139 19 - 181
As at 31 March 2021 502 - 106 59 - 967
[Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 414 - 273 46 - 733

(3a) Intangible assets under devel

Particulars Total
Opening balance at 1 April 2020 &
Additions (Salary capitalised) 25
Transfer to intangibles -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 25

(4)  Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings Total
Gross carrying value
At 1 April 2019 - -
Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer note 28) 1,175 1,175
Additions - -
At 31 March 2020 1,175 1,175
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation expense 362 362
At 31 March 2020 362 362
Met carrying value as at 31 March 2020 813 813
Gross carrying value
At 1 April 2020 1,175 1,175
Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer note 28) 2 z
Additions Tz T2
Disposals 406 406
At 31 March 2021 1,481 1,481
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 362 362
Depreciation expense 404 404
Disposals 406 406
At 31 March 2021 360 360
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 1,121 1,121




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited}

Notes to the fi ial (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(5} Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Goodwill * Total
software

Gross carrying amount

As at 1 April 2019 674 42,233 42907

Additions 2 - 2

Disposals - = -

As at 31 March 2020 676 42,233 42,909 |

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2019 396 16,893 17,289

Amortisation 157 8,440 8,597

Disposals - - -

Asat 31 March 2020 553 25333 25,886 |

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 123 ]ﬂ: 11&3

Gross carrying amount

Asat 1 April 2020 676 42,233 42,909

Additions 1 - 1

Disposals - - =

As at 31 March 2021 677 42,233 42,910

(Accumulated amortisation

Asat | Apnl 2020 553 25333 25886
Amontisation 90 8450 8540
Dispozals - - -

As at 31 March 2021 643 33,783 34,426

b

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021

L2 I — .-

* Refer Note No, 27 - Goodwill arising on account of the amalgamation.

North €
Nesc




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly kmown as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(6) Investments

Non-current investments (measured at cost)
Investment in equity shares of Saraswat Co-Operative Bank (unquoted) 1 1
(5,000 (Previous year; 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid)

Total non-current investments 1 1

(7) Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 4,064 7.436
Significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired 226 453
4,290 7,889
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (226) (453)
Total current trade receivables 4,064 7,436
(8) Loans
Non-current loans
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits
Security deposit to related parties (Ref. note no. 33) 123 -
Security deposit to other than related parties
Unsecured, considered good 252 260
Credit impaired 44 11
419 271
Less: Impairement allowance for security deposit (44) (11)
Total non-current loans 375 260
Current loans
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits 2 113
Total current loans 2 113

(9) Other financial assets

Non-current financial assets

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with bank 208 69
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date 2,353 2477
Deposits (Lien against performance guarantee) 4 91
Total non-current financial assets 2,565 2,637
Current financial assets

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with bank 358 424
Unbilled receivables 1,209 658
Others - receivables 595 559
Less: Credit impaired (25) -
Total current financial assets 2=l3'}' 1,641




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly kmown as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(10) Deferred tax assets (net)
Significant components of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Difference between book and tax value of PPE and intangible assets 130 334
Difference between book and tax value of amortisation of goodwill (2,126) -
Carry forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation 2,430 3570
Provision for doubtful debts 57 113
Provision for doubtful deposits and advance 17 3
Provision for bonus 317 244
Provision for leave encashment 30 17
Lease liabilities {net of right-of-use assets) 32 22
Provision for retirement benefits 87 72
Provision for other expenses and chargeback 485 399
Legal and professional expenses (for amalgamation) amortised 2 5
1,461 4,779

Deferred tax assets have been recognised as at 31 March 2021 as the Company expects utilisation of the unused tax losses and taxable/deductible temporary differences within its
appropriate period of carry forward. The unutilised tax losses of the Company are allowed to be carried forward for a period of eight years under the applicable tax laws and
unutilised tax depreciation can be carried forward indefinitely,

(11) Other assets

Non-current assets

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses 28 32
Total non-current assets 28 32
Current assets

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses 141 129
Advance for expenses 10 32
Goods and services tax credit available 57 21
Total current assets 208 182

(12) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 1 1
Balance with banks

In current accounts 4,116 2492
In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less 2,648 1,947
Deposits (lien against performance guarantees) with original maturity of less than 3 months - 929
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,765 5,369
Nodal balance:

The Company has arrangements for Nodal accounts with various banks. The nodal accounts are operated as per Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') guidelines pertaining to settlement
of payments for electronic payment transactions involving intermediaries. The balance in nodal accounts represents money collected from customers on transactions undertaken
and is used for settling of dues to various merchants as per RBI guidelines.

(13) Other bank balances

Bank deposits due to mature before twelve months from the reporting date 18,501 14,154
Deposits (lien against performance guarantees) due to mature before twelve months from the reporting date 34 -
Total other bank balances ISQS 14,154
Details of bank deposits
Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less included under ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ 2,648 2,876
Bank deposits due to mature within twelve months of the reporting date included under "Other bank balances” 18,535 14,154
Bank deposits due to mature after twelve months of the reporting date included under "Other non-current financial 2,357 2568
assets" - E

. 23,540 19,598

Mumbai -




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(14) Equity share capital
Partiuclars
Authorised
98,070,000 [31 March 2020: 98,070,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,807 9,807
9,807 9,807
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
22,637,413 [31 March 2020: 22,637 413] equity shares of Rs.10 each 2,264 2,264
2,264 2!264
(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
: As at As at
Sl 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 2,26,37,413 2,264 2,26,37413 2,264
Shares issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 2&6;73413 2264 22637413 2,264

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive balance of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts and the
distribution shall be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

(c) Details of shareholding

Particulars : AL i
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number of shares Amount in (Rs,) Number of shares Amount in (Rs.)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up held by
Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL 2,26,37,412 2,264 2,26,37412 2,264
Ingenico Holdings Asia II Limited * 1 0 1 0
* Represents value less than Rs. 1 lakh
{d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
- As at As at
TRt 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
o, i o, T
Niiiber of shasies % of total shares in Niiiibes ot sliates. % of total shares in
the class the class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL 2,26,37,412 99,99% 2,26,37.412 99.99%

(¢) Buy back of shares or shares allotted by way of bonus shares:
The Company has not made any buy-back of shares, nor there has been an issue of shares by way of bonus share or issue of share pursuant to contract without payment being
received / paid in cash for the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(15) Other equity
Securities premium
Retained earnings
Total other equity

Movement of other equity

Securities premium
At the commencement of the year
On shares issued during the year

At the end of the year

Retained earnings

At the commencement of the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuanial Gain / Loss

At the end of the year

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
57471 57,471
(22,145) (14,513)
35,326 42i953
57,471 57,471
57471 57,471

-14,513 9,668
-7,652 -4,827
27 -24

y] 6
(22,145) -14,513




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(16)

an

(18)

(19

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables
Trade payables
Due to related parties (Refer note no. 33)
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note no. 32) - -
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises * 2,370 1,105
Due to others
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note no. 32) 81 -
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises ** 9,154 11,218
Total trade payables ki 11,605 12,323

* This includes Rs. 1,915.64 lakhs [31 March 2020 Rs.212 lakhs] pertains to foreign currency payable in relation to purchase of services which is outstanding for a period more
than one year. These balances are due to the ultimate holding company and holding company and are outstanding beyond the applicable credit period. The Company does not
expect any penalties / levies in this regard and hence no provision has been made towards FEMA non- compli The Company has submitted the request letter to Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) for approval to make the remittances of more than 1 million USD as per RBI regulations given under RBI Master Direction on Other Remittance Facilities
dated 1 January 2016. Approval from RBI is awaited as on date.

** This includes Rs. 190 lakhs pertains to merchant settlement erronously credited to company's Corporate bank account instead of Settlement bank account.

Other financial liabilities

Non-current financial liabilities

Merchant deposit 83 85
Total non-current financial liabilities 83 85
Current financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable 1,530 1,248
Creditors for capital expenditure 109 -
Total current financial liabilities 1,639 1,248
Provisions

Non-current provisions

Gratuity 295 235
Compensated absences 101 54
Total non-current provisions 396 289
Current provisions

Gratuity S50 50
Compensated absences 20 13
Provision for charge-backs*® 716 507
Provision for tax (net of advance taxes) 69 70
Total current provisions 855 640
Movement in Provision for charge-backs

At the commencement of the year 507 n
Provision made during the year 209 181
Provision utilised during the year - 50
At the end of the year 716 507

*Provision for charge-backs: Charge-back costs are estimated on the basis of Company's past experience with merchants, Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of
charge-back costs based on past trends and volume of transactions processed by the Company.

Other liabilities

Current liabilities

Unearned revenue (Contract Liability) 17 42
Statutory dues payable :

-Provident fund 16 16
-Tax deducted at source 123 195
- Goods and services tax s 252
-Employee state insurance corporation 1 1

-Profession tax payable
-Other payables (includes payable to merchants towards tax deducted at source)

Total current liabilities

14ih Hoor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing

Goregaon .iaszl
Mumbai - 400 063




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Cuwrrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(20) Revenue from operations *
Sale of services 43,324 42,085
Break-up of revenue from services rendered:
Payment processing services 42,791 41,346
Risk /stem i 362 460
Integration fees 60 141
Maintenance and other services 111 138
43,324 42,085
* Refer Note No. 29 - Disclosure under Ind AS 115
(21) Other income
Int i on bank deposi 1,243 1,174
Balances written-back 25 114
Interest on income-tax refund 55 30
Excess provisions written back 113 84
Profit on sale/discard of property, plant and equi 5 -
Other miscellaneous income 3 N
Net gain on of foreign exchange fl i 49 -
1,493 1,402
(22) Operating expenses
Bank clearing charges 30,427 28,672
Software license charges 421 441
Commission 197 226
Server charges 135 131
Other operating expenses 163 626
Total operating expenses 31,343 30,096
(23) Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,723 4,821
Contribution to provident and other funds 95 103
Gratuity 103 90
Compensated absences 66 3l
Staff welfare and other employee related costs 62 188
Less: Capitalisation for intangible asset under development 25) -
Total employee benefits expenses 5,024 5,233
(24) Finance costs
Interest expense on finance lease 2% 84
Interest expense on delayed pay of y dues * 1 0
97 84

* Represents value less than Rs. 1 lakh




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(25) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipments 384 268
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 28) 404 362
Amortisation of intangible assets 8,540 8,597
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 9,328 9,227

(26) Other expenses

Legal and professional fees 247 146
Rent** 2% 182
Contract manpower cost 497 482
Rates and taxes * 0 3
Power and fuel 42 118
Repairs and maintenance - others 19 11
IT infrastructure expenses 393 363
Communication 46 43
Bank charges 12 &
Travelling and conveyance 14 145
Annual maintenance charges 86 81
Recruitment 11 34
Postage and courier 3 14
Printing and stationery 5 27
Advertising and marketing 85 123
Provision for chargeback 208 174
Management fees 1,021 914
Royalty fees 292 257
Bad debts written off 16 82
Profit on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment - 7
Payment to auditors (refer Note below) 47 35
Subscription fees 6 5
Allowance for expected credit loss 42 177
Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations - 44
Miscellaneous expenses 169 114
Total other expenses 3,366 3,588

* Represent value less than Rs, | lakh
** Includes lease rentals for short term leases and leases of low value assets for the vear,

Payment to auditors (excluding GST) :

For statutory audit 23 13
For tax audit 4 3
For other services 18 18
Out of pocket expenses 2 1

Total payment to auditors (excluding GST) 47 35
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(27) Amalagamation
Note: - As per the NCLT merger order, with effect from the Effective Date, the name of the Transferee Company shall be changed from "E-Billing Solutions Private Limited” to "Ingenico ePayments India
Private Limited" in accordance with Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the C ies Act, 2013 as applicabl

Amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with the Company

The sharcholders of the Company approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme™) between E-Billing Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™) and TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited
("Transferor Company™).

TechProcess Payvment Services Private Limited is engaged in the business of providing payment aggregation services wherein it enables 10 accept through online f in
partnership with their acquiring banks. It also provides recurring payment services to its clients in the form of Electronic clearing svstem (ECS), National automated clearing house (NACH), direct debit, e-
mandate services and such ancillary activities to payment services. Among others, it acts as an intermediary to facilitate delivery, review and payment of bills payable to any utility provider, service
provider or the like, in respect of services’ facilities or utilities availed and to receive and send i ions and/or ications in respect of the same.

The National Company Law Tribumal (“"NCLT™), Mumbai Bench on 8 October 2018, approved the Scheme as per the provisions of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with
the Scheme, the Transferor Company is merged with the Company with an appointed date of 1 April 2017. The Scheme has become effective on 17 October 2018, being the date on which the order of the
NCLT, Mumbai Bench has been filed with the Registrar of Companics, Mumbai by the Company. The impact of amalgamation has been given in the financial year 2017-2018 with effect from the

appointed date. The NCLT order override the requirements under Ind AS 103, Business Combinations and hence the Company has i the date of acquisition as 1 April 2017. The Company has
idered the said amal ion as a business acquisition from the appointed date.

In d: with the p ions of the "Sdmne,r.h:Company lischarged the purch jeration in Ni her 2017 by issuing 7,286 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each against every

IOMOeqmlyshamafﬂicT Company. A , for a total ideration of Rs.57,251 lakhs the Company has allotted and isswed 21,639,960 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs

254 56 per share to the sharcholders of the Transferor Ccmpany

The NCLT order override the requirements under Ind AS 103, Busincss Combinations and hence the Amal ion has been i for under the "Purchase Method® as per AS-14 Accounting for

Amalgamations as referred to in the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the NCLT. Had the Company followed the requirements of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations, the excess of consideration over
assets and liabilities would be been debited to Retained eamnings (net of deferred taxes) instead of Goodwill.

All assets and liabiliti luding reserves g in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company as at | Apnl 2017 have been incorporated at their fair values in the financial statements of the
Company,

All assets and liabilities excluding reserves taken over on amalgamation and equity shares to be issued by the Company to the shareholders of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with effect
from the appointed date are as under:

Parthculars As at]
1 April 2017}
ASSETS
{A) Non-current asiets
(&) Property, plant and squipment 383
(b)) Orther intangible nssets T43
() Financial asscts
(i) Investments 1
(i1} Loans L]
(1) Other financial assets 56
{d) Income tax nssets {net) 1431
{e) Other assets 2446
Total non-current assets 5,484
(B) Current assets
{0} Financial nasets
(1) Investments 1902
(i) Trade receivables 1,724
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 1,307
(1) Bunk balances other than (i) above 6,591
(¥) Loans 7
(vi) Other financial assets 329
(b) Orther assets 57
Total current assets 13,137
_
Total assets 18,621

14th Floor,
Central 8 Wing and
Nart
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(27) Amal tion (Continued)

Amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with the Company (Continued)

Particulars

(A) Linbilities

(I} Non-current lizbilities

[(n) Financial liabilities

(i) Otber financial liabilities
(1) Provisions

() Deferred tax linbilitics (net}
[{d) Other Habilitics

Total non-eurrent liabilities

(1) Current liabilities

(8) Firancial Habilities

{1} Tradde pnyables

1. Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(i) Other financial labilties
(b} Provisions

() Other lisbilities

{d} Cusrent tax Linbilities {net)
Total current liabilities

| Total lisbilities

Net assets taken aver

Purchase considerntion

Goodwill

2. Des of creditors other than mico enterprises and small enterprises

As at
1 April 2017|

49
63
3l

145

‘Goodwill arising on account of the I

d over period of five vears as per AS-14, Accounting for Amalgamations.

(28) Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases’ with the date of initial application being | April 2019, Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related mterpretation and guidance,

In adopting Ind AS 116 "Leases', it has used the modified retrospective approach, where it has recognised the lease liability on initial application (i.c. | April 2019) at the present value of the remaining lease
| ing rate at the date of initial application & it has recognised the a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, at an amount equal

p i using the company's (lessee’s) i
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or acerued

Company has not restated comparative information.

In adopting Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients:

- The Company has di: d lease p using the appli

Ib ing rate at the date of initial application.

lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application, Accordingly, the

- The Company has treated the leases with remaining lease term of less than 12 months as if they were "short term leases”, they continue to be recognised as an expense in the P&L account,
- The Company has not applied the requirements of Ind AS 116 for leases of low value assets
- The Company has used hindsight, in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease

On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 1,175 lakhs as on Ist April, 2019.

ROU Assety

Particulars Amount

ROU Asset a3 on 1 April 2019 1,175
362

| Depreciation
ROU Asset as on 31 March 2020

Lense linbility us on 31 March 2021

ROU Assef as on 1 April 2020 813
Add: Addition during the year Tz
| Depreciation A4
ROU Asset as on 31 March 2021 1,121
I Liabili

Particulars Amount

Lease liability as on 15t April, 2019 1,175
Finance cost 54
Lease payments 361
Lease liability as on 31st March, 2020 i

e —————

Lease linbility as on 1 April 2020 B9R
Add Additiom during the year ki3
| Finance cost 9%
Lease payments 457

Non-current

i t of Profit and L

Particulars

Diepreciation charped during the year on ROU asseta
Finance coat on the lease liability

'l'ola,

Amount




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
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{29) Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company is engaged in the business of providing payment p ing services, There is no impact on the Company's revenue on applying Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers.

Reconciliation of revenue as per Ind AS 115

Particulary Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Masch 2020

Sale of services

Adjustment on aceount of: 43314 42.085

Total 43,324 42,085

The Company's revenue is primarily from providing payment processing services. All the revenue is derived primarily from the customers in India.

The billing to customers follow different schedules based upon the nature and type of services being ferred. The billing is Ily made on a monthly basis and payable within contractually agreed credit
period,

There is no revenue to be recognised in future related to perfi bligations that are isfied (or partially satisfied) as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financi I if at contract inception it
is expected that the period between when the entity a promiscd service to a and when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less,

The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose inft ion about ining perft bligations that have original expected duration of one vear or less.
Since the Company’s revenue is ily from providing payment p ing services and such busi of providing payment p ing services a single business segment, no de-segregation of

revenue is being done by the company, (Refer note 35)
Impact of COVID-19
‘While the Company believes strongly that it has a rich portfolio of services to partner with customers and also since the company operates in a digital space, the impact on fiture revenue streams is insignificant.

The Company has considered such impact to the extent known and currently available. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature
and duration.

(30) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a)  Contingencies

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of income-tax demand and payment to Income Tax Authority are as below. Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
aggregates to Rs, 18 lakhs (31 Mar 2020 Rs 18 lakhs).

As at As al
|sscssment Year 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2003-2004 16 16
2004-2005 0 0
2005-2006 n 1
2006-2007 5 5
2007-2008 146 146
2008-2009 9 9
2017-2018 1,219 1219
2018-2019 3 -
Aggregare Income Taz demand 1,429 1,426
: s ey e lmanbory 1219 1219
Net aggregate Income Tax demand —%!2 207
* Management considers these claims/demands are not tenable against the Company, and th no provision for these contingency has been established
2 The income tax authorities have disallowed certain exp aggregating Rs. 179 lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs. I79]a.khs]dunngmemewurseof P dings for vears from
year 2003-04 to assessment year 2007-08. The Company is contesting against these disallowances at various levels with the i 1 M; believes that the outstanding matters are not
tenable against the Company, and th no provision for these conti has been established

3 The Company had received notice under Section 148 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 along with notice issued under section 142(1) of the Act for the reason that the Company received large amount of money by
way of share application money/share capital of Rs. 1,505 lakhs with high share premium. The Company filed a writ petition in the Bombay High Court, challenging the Order. The Hon'ble Bombay High
Court passed an order dated 8 December 2016 granting interim stay to the reassessment proceedings initiated under Section 147 of the Act in respect of TechProcess for financial year 2008-09, No demand has
been received so far from the income tax department. The Company is confident of obtaining favorable verdict in this matter.

4 Performance guarantees issucd by bank and cutstanding as on 31 March 2021 Rs. 4,480 Lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs. 4,844 lakhs) against licn on fixed deposits.

5 In February 2017, TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited (formerly TechProcess Payment Services Limited), now merged with the Company cancelled the ESOP scheme 2016 and ESOP scheme 2012
with an exgratia compensation to the employees covercd in the said Scheme, 17 ex-employees, including the ex-CEQ filed a suit in the Bombay High Court, secking a stay on the cancellation of the Scheme ora
compensation of Rs. 1,602 lakhs,

On 6 May 2021, ln,genmePaymns,Mr BnkramylSenandﬂ-ee:smlnleopuonlmldersemedmoaSmlanmAyemMmghwmmmmdﬂlmmgmspmesmmﬁumwmformlhe

subject matter of the | In i with the terms of the Settl Agl Ingenico P Mr. Bil Sen and the hile option holders have withdrawn all petitions and
applications filed by them before the High Court and the Ld. Sole Arbitrator, lngaume?ammpmdalonlmmlofks 719 lakhs in June 2021 as a part of the said setth The balance p ion mn
books against ESOP scheme is Rs. 267 lakhs and Rs. 451 lakhs reimk d by holding company Ingenico ¢-Ce Solutions BVBA/SPRL as a final sertlement.

6 In February 2019, the Supreme Court of India in its jud clarified the applicability of all that should be considered to measure obligations under Empl Provident Fund Act, 1952, However,
there are numerous interpretative aspects related to the judgement, including the effective date of application. In view of the above, the Company has assessed the liability which is not significant. The Company
will continue to assess any further developments in this matter for the implications on financial if any

(b}  In April-May 2018, the Company found out that there was a shortfall in settlement funds due from wallet company, which was integrated as a payment option for the Company's merchants. Investigations
revealed that for many transactions in April-May 2018, the Company had received *success’ confirmation and passed it on to merchants for onward delivery of goods and services. The wallet company has
claimed to have passed on ‘failed” status to the Company, due to which no moneys were received but dist were made to } by the Company, The Company belicves prima facic that the status
of transactions have been tampered in transit. The Company conducted a forensic study and has already reported the matter to law enforcement authorities. The matter is in progress with law enforcement
authorities. The Company had made a total closing provision of Rs 790 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021 (Rs.790 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020).

During the vear ended 31 March 2019, one of the employees of the Company misappropriated funds aggregating to Rs 9 lakhs into his own personal bankaccmlm The concemned employee admitted the act.
The Company filed police compliant in January 2019 and filed First Information Report in March 2019, The matter is in p with law enfi

commitments
amount of contract remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) as on 31 March 2021 15 Nil (31 March 2020; Nil}
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(31) Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Loss attributable 0 the equity holders of the Company (Amewnt in Lakhs) (7.652) 4,827
Weighted nvernge namber of equity shares 1,26,37,413 22637413
Eamings per share (basic snd diluted) (33.80) 2132
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 10 10

(32) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to dues to Micro and

Small Enterprises. On the basis of the u and records available with the Company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro and Small Enterprises:
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(n) the principal amount and the interest due thercon (10 be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier sl Ll -

the end of each nccounting year,

() the ameount of interest paid by the buver in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small nnd Medium Enterprises - N
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day

| during each accounting year,

() the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delsy in making payment (which have been paid but o -]
beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, *

(d} the amount of interest accrwed and remaining anpaid at the end of each accounting year, and * o -
{e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the mecceeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallownnce of 2 deductible
| expenditure under section 23 of the Micr, Small and Mexdiom Enterprises Development Act, 2004,

* Represent value less than Rs, | lakh
(33) Related party transactions

(a) Related parties

Sr. Name of the party Nuture of relationship
Ne

1 Waorldline 5.A, (w.ef Zith October 2020 Ultimate holding company
2 Ingemico Group S.A, (ull 27th October 2020} Ultsmate bolding company
3 Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL Holding company

4 Global Collect Services BV, Fellow subsidiary

3 Retail International Holding Fellow subsidiory

6 Ingenico Intemational indin Private Limited Fellow subsidiary

7 Waorldline India Private Limited {w.e.£. 28th October 2020) Fellow subsidiary

8 Ingenico Group S.A, (w.c.£ 28th October 2020) Fellow subsidiary

(b} Kev managerial personnel

Sr. Particulars Nature of relationship
Mo

I Mr. Ramesh Nasasimban (Appointed w.e [, 3th Seplember 201%) Diirectar and CEQ

1 Mr. Ramakrishon R ppainted w.e.{ 30th September 2019) Diirectar

3 Mr. Kumar Manobar Karpe (resigned wie . 15t Oclober 2015) Directar and CEQ

4 Mr. Anand Ramachandrn {resigned w.e. £, 15t October 2019) Diirector and CFO

5 Ms. Esha Mehin Company Secretary

<
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(33) Related party transactions (Continued)

{c} Details of transactions with related parties for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Sr. Nature of Transaction Ultimate Holding Holding Company Fellow Sabsidiary Key Manngement Personnel Total
Mo Company

A Transactions
1 Managerial remuneration

Mr. Ramesh Morasimban - - - kgl 7

Mr. Ramakrishnan Ramamusthy - - - 18 s
2 ta Company ¥

Esha Mehta 12 n
3 Relmbursement of expenses of shared office

Ingenico International India Private Limited - - 3 - 3
4 Security deposit paid

Worldline India Private Limited - - 123 = 123
5 Rent, Repair and maintenance

Worldline India Private Limited &0 B0
6 Management fees

Retail Internatsonal Holding - - 1021 - 101
T Rayalty fees

Ingenico Group 8.4 - - 2 . 242
# HRevenue from services (Risk management services)

Ingensco e-Cammeree Solutsons BVEA/SFRL - 254 - - 154
92 Revenue from services (Payment Gatewsy transaction process)

Global Collect Services BV - - 53 - 53

Worldline India Private Limited - - 5 - |

B Closing balances

1 Trade receivables
Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL = 2 - - 2
Global Collect Services B.V. 28 b ]
Worldline ndia Private Limited - B 4 - 4
2 Security deposit receivable
Worldline India Private Limited - - 123 = 123
3 Trade paynbles
Ingenico Group 5.A. - B Lio? - 1,107
Retnil International Holding - - 210 - 1210
Ingenico Iaternational India Private Limited - - 4 £ 4
Worldline Indis Private Limited B - 50 - 50

{c) Details of transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2020

Sr. Nature of Transaction Ultimate Holding Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Key Manngement Personnel Total
No Company
A Transactions
1 Managerial remuneration
Mr. Kumar Karpe - - - 1 L
Mr. Anand Remachandran - . - 194 194
Mr. Ramesh Narasimban - . . o 9
Mr. Ramakrishnan Ramamuorthy - - - nr n7
2 Remunerstion to Compuny Secretary
Esha Mehta 10 10
3 Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
Mr. Ramesh Narasimhan * - - - 0 o
4 Reimbursement of expenses of shared office
Ingenico Internationn] Indin Private Limited - - 35 - EH]
5 Management fees
Ingenico Group 8.A. B0 - & L a04
Retail International Holding - - 10 = 10
6 Royalty fees
Ingenico Group S.A. 257 - - - 257
7 Revenue from services (Risk management services)
Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SFPRL - Fiv - - 37
B Revenue from services (Payment Gateway transaction process)
Global Collect Services BV, - - 143 - 143
% Recovery of support services cost
Ingenico International India Private Limited - - L] - 4

B Clesing balances
1 Trade receivables

Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SFRL - - - i

Global Collect Services B.V. = : 0 5 10
2 Trade payables

Ingenico Group 5.4, - 589 - - 59

Retail International Holding 07 - 207

Ingenico Iternational India Private Limited e - 9

* Represents value less than Rs. 1 lakh

»




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Privare Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(34)

Share-based payments

(a) Long-term incentive plan (Phantom shares plan)

(35)

(36)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company Launched a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTT) for the benefit of key employees, subject to the satisfaction of certain perfe and service

Achievement  Granted Phantom  Evsluation date Date of pryment upon
resence

of shares P

performance

conditions

EBS integration 30% of the 31 March 2019 30 April 2019
roadmap conditional award

NPCYREL 5% of the 31 March 201% 30 April 2019,
License conditional oward

Ombearding 5% of the 31 March 201% 30 Ageil 2019
Top Billers conditional award

Finamcial 47% of the 31 December 2020 31 March 2021
targels 2019 conditional awasd

2020

* Revenie 13% of the 31 December 2021 31 March 2022
tarpets year conditional award

2021

Award means conditional award of Ingenico Phantom shares to the benefit of such employee, subject to the vesting in accordance with the plan. Ingenico Phantom shares means a unit representing the night to
receive a cash amount based on Ingenico share price.

* As at 31 March 2021, the per dition of ial targets 20119-2020 was partially achicved and therefore the Company has approved to pay 87% of the target amount and balance 13% of the
target amount will be offered to the same set of key employees and advisor as an opportunity to catch-up with the new revenue target for year 2021, if achieved will be paid by March 2022

The Company paid Nil during the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020; Rs. 36 lakhs) to its employces and recognised an expense of Rs, 148,54 lakhs in the statement of profit and loss account for the
vear ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Rs. 425 lakhs) on achi of other perfc ditions as per plan by their respective evaluation dates, The Company subsequently paid Rs. 556 lakhs in
August 2021 to all the eligible employees and balance will be paid by March 2022

Segment reporting

Opemmgwglmlisamd:ﬁnedasmemofanmrpmﬁorwimhmme is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker for assessing the Company’s
perf ng the based on an analysis of various perft indi by busi 5 and geographic so

“The Company is mainly engaged in the business of providing payment processing services which constitute a single business segment. These activities are conducted only in one geographic segment viz India.
Therefore, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 “Segment Reporting”™ are not applicable.

Information about major customers

The Company has | year; | ) ibuting more than 10% of the total revenue and in aggregate of Rs.4,926 lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs.5,202 lakhs). These revenues are artributed to

the payment processing services which constitute a single business segment.

Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan
mCatnpmyhasadeﬁmdoonmhnuonplanmmspmof ident fund Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
oonlnbuuommmadcw i P fund 1 by the G of India, The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020|
Emgployves contribution to provident fund 5 103

Included in *Contribution to provident and other funds’ under employee benefits cxpense (Refer Note 23)

(b) Compensated absences

mmitpmyammesfcrunmhsedhnve,adeﬁmbeneﬁtplanhsedmmeawhhhhawbalanunmﬂmgwﬂlcuednofdum\rﬂmﬂw The value of such leave balance eligible for carry

forward, is d ined by I valuation as at the Balance sheet and is charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the penod determined.
Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars As at Aspt

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate & at 31 March 606 6.24%
Future salary increases G 5.0% [Year 1], 10.0% [Thereafter]
[ Mortality rate LALM (2012-14) Ultimate TALM {2012-14) Ultimate
Adltrition Rate 18% 2%
Neamal retirement age 58 years 58 years
The estimates of future salary i idered in the 1l valuation takes into account factors like inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors.
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(36) Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Empl who are in service for a period of 5 years arc eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on reti ination is the empl last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a
funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India,
Particulars Gratuity

Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Mscount rate 05 at 31 March 6.06% 6.24%
Future salary increases e 5.09% [Year 1], 10,0% [Thereafler]
Expected return on plan aseets (AL 6.14%
Aftrition rafe 18% 1%
Martality Kate LALM (2012-14) Ultimate LALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Notes:

1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian go for the d term of the obligations,

2, Salary escalation rate; The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

3. Assumpti fing future mortality exp dance with the of India.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) over the year are as follows :

are setin published by the Life 1 fe

Change in the present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year

Interest cost

Fast service cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

| Remeasurement due to

| Actuarial loss{ gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuzanal lossf{gain) arising on necount of experience changes
Actuarial {gainyloss arising on account of demographical assumptions
Present value of abligation at the end of the vear

As at As ot
31 Marech 2021 31 March 2020]
413 305

5 3

% T

36) amn

3 (8)

(=] 13

10 17

462 413

Total expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the fair value of plan assets over the year are as follows :
‘Change in the fair value of plan nssets Asat Asm
31 March 2021 31 March 20201
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 128 192
Interest on plan assets 8 1
Actuarial painsflosses) * 1 o
Contributions made by the Company 15 R
Benefits paid 36) (107
Fair value of plen assets at the end of the year 116 128
—l
* Represent value less than Rs. 1 lakh
Reconcillation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets As at As ot
31 March 2021 31 March 202
Present value of funded obligntion at the end of the year 462 413
Famr value of plan 255215 25 at the end of the period (118) {128)
Dreficit of funded plan 346 285
T
(Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Asat Az
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 8 T2
Past service cost - s
Interest cost 17 12
103 @

Amount recognised in other comprebensive Income

| Remeasurements during the year due to

Changes m financial assumptions

Changes in demographic assumptions

Experience adjustments

Actual return on plan nasets less interest on plan nsscts *

Amount recognised in other comprebensive income during the year

Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 Maorch 2020,
3 6|

10 17

=39 13

m {09

27 24

* Represent vakue less than Rs. | lakh
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(36) Employee benefits (Continued)
{d) Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in weighted principal ptions is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation end of the perfod
Sr Particulars As at As b
No 31 March 2021 31 March 20204
1. Discount rabe + 100 basis points 439 39
2. Discount rate -100 basis points. 486 432
3. Balary Incresse Rate +1% 482 430
4. Balary Increase Rate -1% 2 398
5. Attrition Rate +1% 437 41
6. Altrition Rate 1% 466 a7
Theabwesensm\nh'analwsmbawdonaclnustmanassumptmwlnlcholdlmall other assumptions constant. In practice it is unlikely to occur, and changes in mofﬂzaswupbuumybecorrdamd.
The methods and types of ption used in pref the v analysis did not change compared to previous period.
(¢) Expected future benefit payments
Expected cash flows for following year Asat
31 Munrch 2021 31 March 20201
Yeor | 61 (]
Year 2 a7 56
Yeor 3 -] 5l
Ve 4 54 46
Year 5 43 40
Next 5 years 143 19
(37) Income tax expense
(a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Particulars Year ended Year ended|
31 March 2021 31 March 20204
Current tax
Current tax
Tatal current tax expense
Deferred tax
Deferred tax 3311 56
Total deferred tax benefit/(expense) 3311 B
Income tax expense 3311 L
(b} OCI section deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
et hoss K Gain} on remeasurement of defined benefit plans [u] &
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit computed by applying income tax rate:
Particulars Year ended Year ended|
31 March 2021 31 Maorch 2020
Lass beforc tax (4,341) (4.741)|
Tax: rate of 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) 25 168% 25 168%,
Computed tax expense (1.093) (1,194}
Goodwill on Merger not deductible * 4,484 -]
Imgpact of change in deferred tax rate - 1326
Dhefierred ta due to true up of lodses 97) 48
(Others 1 (95)]
Income tax expense 3311 B
e —————————

*  Represent value less than R, | lakh
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Notes to the fi ial stats ts (Continued)
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(38) Fair value measurement

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair valucs of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value those includes cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and trade payables,

(a) Financial instruments by category

31 March 2021 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value through profit Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
or lows
anets
Nom-curreat
Investment in equity shares - 1 . 1 %
Security depasits z 175 3 = =
Interest accrued but not due on fved deposita wath bank - 208 - a i
Fixed deposits with bank (including asssts on lien) - 2357 -
Current -
Trade receivables L 4064 i 3 =
Security deposits = 2 % 7 5
Cash and cash equivalents - 6,765 - - -
(Other bank balances. - 18,535 - - -
Interest acerued but not due on fived deposits with bank - 358 - - -
Unbilled receivables - 1,209 - -
Others - recesvables - 570 - -
Total financial assets - 34444 - 1 -
| Financial Babilities
Nen-curreat
Merchant deposit : % 4 . "
Lease liahilities 950 - = %
Current
Trade payables - 11,605 - . i
Employee benefits paynbie 1,530 - - 5
(Creditors for capatal expendinrs 0 e - =
Lease linbilities 299 - £ 2
Total financial liabilities - 14,576 - - =
N— —
31 March 2020 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value through profit Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial asseis

Noa-current

Investment in equity shares - 1 1 =
Security deposits s 260

Intesest accrued but nod doe on fixed deposits with bank - [ o

Fixed deposits with bank {including assets on lien) o 2,568 - 2

Current -

Imvestment in mutual funds units - - -

Trade recervables - TA436 !

Secarity deposits - 13 =

Cash nnd cash equivalents E 5,369

| Oeher hank balances - 14,154 =

Interest accrued but not due on fixed depesits with bank - 424 =

Unbilled receivables - 658 = = a0
| Others - receivables - 559 - = -
Total financial assets - 3611 A 1 -
Financial ibiliti

Nom-current

Merchant deposit - a5 i

Lease liabilities - 573 -

Emplovee benefita payable - - i ” N
Current

Trade payables - 12,323 - & =
Esmployee benefits payable 1248

Lease lisbility 325

Total financial liabilities - 14,554 = =
Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equival bank bal trade receivables, unbilied ivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 approximate the fair value. Difference

between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets and other fi ial liabilities sub Iy d at ised cost is not ifi in each of the penods presented.
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(38)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

b} Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:
Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market ions in the same i nor are they based on available market data.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosure
are required):

Financial assets measured ai fair value at 31 March Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2021

Investment in equity shares of Sarnswat Co-Operative Bank - 1 - 1

|Financinl sssets messured st fair value at 31 March Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatsl

2020

Investment in equity shares of Samswat Co-Operative Bank 1 - 1

{¢} Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

Specific valuati hniques used to value financial i include:
- the use of quoted market prices or mutual fund houscs quotes (NAY) for such instruments. This is included in Level 2.
- the fair value of the ining financial i is ok med using di d cash flow analysis for which third party valuer is appointed. This is included in Level 3. The Company did not use the

services of third party valuer as at 31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 for any of the financial instruments as it were not applicable duning these vears.,

{d} Fair value of financial assets and lisbilities measured at amortised cost

(39

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equival bank bal , trade ivables, unbilled ivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 approxi the fair value. Diffe between
carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets and other fi ial liabiliti b Iy d at ised cost is not signi in each of the periods presented. They are
classificd as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs, including counter party credit risk.

Fi ial risk fr k

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsit for the establish and ight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and itoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The Board holds regular meetings on its activities.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk

management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and and procedures,
ams to a disciplined and control envi in which all employ ' 1 their roles and obligati
The Board how i with the Company’s risk policics and p i and reviews the adeg of the risk k in relation to the risks

faced by the Company, The Board is assisted in its role by internal audit team from Ingenico Group. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of nsk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Board and audit committee of Ingenico Group.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the nisk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management of riak
Creditrisk  Cash ond cash equivalents, trade receivables,  Ageing analysis Diversification of bank depesits, credit limits and regular monitoring
financin] azsets mensured at amortised cost. Credit ratings
Liquidity risk ~ Trade payables and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts ilabality of surples cash, ittest credit line and ing fucilities
Market isk - Recognised financial azsets and linbilities not Cash flow forzcasting Regular monitoring to keep the nel exposure at an acceplable level.
foregn denominated i Indian npee (INR) Sensilivity analysis
exchange
Price risk Investment in mutual funds Credit ratings Portfolio drversification and regular monitorng
a). Credit risk
Credit nisk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company if a or T wa ial i fails to meet its 1 obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from
customers,
Trade and other receivables
‘The Company's exposure to credit risk is infl d mainly by the individual cf istics of each . However, also iders the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer
base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.
A default on a financial asset is when the party fails to make I p when they fall due. This definition of default 15 d ined by idering the business emvi in which Company

operates and other macro-cconomic factors,
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, market inteiligence and goodwill, On fing ivables are regulark




Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as E-Billing Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(39) Financial risk management framework (Continued)
a). Credit risk (Continued)

The Company has established an all for i that rep its d credit losses in respect of trade and other reccivables. ﬂwmanagumluscsasnnphﬁcdapprmhfwﬂl:purpo@eef
wmpmmofexpeﬂadcr@tlmsfortrademwbhsandIlrrmnhcxpewdcwdltlosforodier ivables. An impai analymls i at each rep dauonm dividual basis for major
parties. In addition, a large number of minor recei bined into h and i for impai . The calculation is based on historical data of actual losses. The

Company evaluates the concentration of nisk with rcsmwrmdemcrvablcsas low.

Summary of the Company's cxposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
= Prst due 0o 150 days 4,108 6781
- Past due more than 150 days 185 1,108
Gross carrying amount 4,290 7889
Expectad credit loss (Loss allowance provision) (226) (453}
et carrying amount of trade receivable 4,064 7436
Reconciliation in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020/
Balance #1 the beginning of the year 453 37
Bad debts written off owt of opening provision a7y -
Provision {met) during the year (56) 166
Balance at the end of the year 116 453

—— — |

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies,
accordingly the Company considers that the related credit risk is low. Impairment on these items arc measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis.

b). Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligati tated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining liquidity through investments in liquid funds and other itted credit lines. M: itors rolling of the Company’s
liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their | ities. The disclosed in the table arc | und: i cash flows, bal
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Carrying amount Contractual cash flows Contractual cash flows|
31 March 2021 <l 2months Upto one year More than ene year|
Non-derivative financial Habilithes
| Trade payables 11,605 11,685 -
(Other financial liabilities 1,723 1,639 <3
31 March 2020
Trade payables 12,323 12323 =
(Other financial liabilities 1,333 1,248 s
{&). Market risk
l\olnrkansklsrhe.nskansmgﬁunnlmgmmmzrketpnnes snchasibmgnm(cwmmdmmm will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market
risk i5 attributable to all market risk i luding foreign bles and pay and long term debt TheCompawylsuposdwmaﬂnamkpmwdyrelxmdmﬁ:mp
exchange rate nisk, interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exposure to market risk is a function of i ing and b ng ities and revenue and op g
in foreign currency.
(i). Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of foreign y ions includi gnized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (%),

primarily in respect of Euros(€) and United States Dollar($). T‘hef.‘ompanymnmﬂmﬂwnet Xp is kept to an ptable level,
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(39

(40)

Financial risk 2 t fr k (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk
The Company's exposure to foreign curreney risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

As at 31 March 2021

Financinl assets EUR usp Total
Trude recesvables n - n
Met exposre to foreign cirency (nssels) n - 12
Financial Habilitics

Trude payahles L34 3 2329|
Net exposure to foreign currency {liabilities) 1304 5 2,329

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets EUR usp Total
Trade receivables 11 = 21
Net exposure to foreign curmency (assets) 11 - 21I
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 1096 - 1,096
Net expasuze to foreign currency (Labilities) 1,096 - 1,096/

—
Sensitivity analysis
chlm:gcwﬁrtsptclwwwhuns(wkﬂung}ofﬂwhtd:anRupeeagammmsmasﬂNMaﬂ:llZDZl 31 March 2020 would have affected the of fi ial i

ies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates
Impact on profit after tax Impact on other companents of equity
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

EUR
 Incresse by % (86) 35) . -
- Decrease by 5% 86 35 . .
Usp
- Increase by 5% 0} - = &
- Decrense by 5% o - = e
(ii). Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of
fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing i will fl because of fl ions in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s deposits/loans are all at fixed rate and are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the firture
cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

(iii). Price risk exposure

The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from such
investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Further these are all debt base securities for which the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk, Quotes (NAV) of these investments are available
from the mutual fund houses.

Profit for the year would i ) a5 a result of gains/l on these ities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Transfer pricing

The Company's g has developed a system of mair of infe jon and d as required by the Transfer pricing legislation under Section 92 to Section 92F of the Income tax Act, 1961,
The Company's management is of the opinion that its international transactions arc at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have an impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount
of tax expense and that of the provision for taxation.

Mumbai
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(41) Code on Social Security, 2020
The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are
applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are vet to be framed. The Company will perform its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the
period in which, the Code becomes cffective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are framed

(42) Reclassification of previous year amount
Certain amounts in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the current period financial statements.
‘As per our report of even date attached.
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